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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-Q
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER
- For the quarterly period ended . June 30, 2020
Commission identification number 11163
BIR Tax Identification No 000-471-497-000

- Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter PHILCOMSAT HOLDINGS CORPORATION

. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization Philippines

Industry Classification Code- ] (SEC Use Only)

Address of issuer's principal office 316 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City Postal Code 1200

—=

Issuer's telephone number, including area code (632) 815-9556
. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report Not Applicable

0.Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of each Class Number of shares of common
stock outstanding and amount
of debt outstanding
Common Shares 996,391,254

1. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [v] No [ ]

If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities listed therein-

Philippine Stock Exchange Common shares
SECForm17-Q - 3-

February 2001



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE
SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS
(a) Use of Form 17-Q

This SEC Form 17-Q shall be used for quarterly reports under Section 17 of the Cade, filed
pursuant to paragraph (2)(b) of SRC Rule 17 thereunder and shall be filed within 45 calendar days after
the end of each of the first three fiscal quarters of each fiscal year. The first quarterly report of the issuer
shall be filed either within 45 calendar days after the effective date of the registration statement or on or
before the date on which such report would have been required to be filed if the issuer had been required
previously to file reports on SEC Form 17-Q, whichever is later. No report need be filed for the fourth
quarter of any fiscal year.

(b) Application of SRC Rule 72.1: Requirements for Filing Forms

SRC Rule 72.1 contains general rules and regulations which are applicable to reports on forms to
be filed with the Commission. SRC Rule 68 contains requirements for the content of financial statements
to be filed with the Commission as part of this report. These Rules should be carefully read and observed
in the preparation and filing of reports on this Form.

(¢} Preparation of Report

(1) This is not a blank form to be filled in. Itis a guide to be used in preparing the report in
accordance with SRC Rule 72.1. The Commission does not furnish blank copies of this Form to be filled
in for filing.

(2) These general instructions are not to be filed with the report. The instructions to the various
captions of the form are also to be omitted from the report as filed. The repart shall contain the numbers
and captions of all applicable items, but the text of such items may be omitted, provided the answers
thereto are prepared in the manner specified in SRC Rule 72.1. All items that are not required to be
answered in a particular report may be omitted and no reference thereto need be made in the report. All
instructions should also be omitted.

(d) Incorporation by Reference

In accordance with the provisions of SRC Rule 12-2, if the issuer makes available to its
stockholders or otherwise publishes, within the period prescribed for filing the report, a document or
statement containing information meeting some or all of the requirements of Part | of this Form, the
information called for may be incorporated by reference from such published document or statement, in
answer or partial answer to any item or items of Part | of this Form, provided copies thereof are filed as an
exhibit to Part i, and all information called for in this Form is supplied.

(e) Integrated Reports to Security Holders

Quarterly reports to security holders may be combined with the required information of Form 17-Q
and will be suitable for filing with the Commission if the combined report contains full and complete
answers to all items required by this Form. When responses to a certain item of required disclosure are
separated within the combined report, an appropriate cross-reference should be made.

SECForm17-Q (Instructions)
February 2001



(f) Signature and Filing of Report

(1) Five complete copies of the repor, including any financial statements, exhibit or other paper
or document filed as a part thereof shall be filed with the Commission. At least one complete copy of the
report, including any financial statements, exhibit or other paper or document filed as a part thereof, shall,
if any class of the issuer's securities are listed in a stock exchange, be filed with that Exchange.

(2) At least one camplete copy of the report filed with the Commission and, when applicable,
one copy filed with the Exchange shall be manually signed on the issuer's behalf by a duly authorized

provided the issuer clearly indicates the dual responsibifities of the signatory. See also paragraph (2) and
(3) of SRC Rule 72.1 conceming copies, binding, signatures, paper, printing, language, and pagination.

SECForm17-Q - 2-
February 2001
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42 mdicate by check mark whether the registrant:

(a) has filed alf reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and’SRC Rule 17 thereunder or
N Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of the
Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter

period the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes [T No [ ]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (80) days. =

Yes [T No [ ]
i &
PART I-FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements.

Financial Statements and, if applicable, Pro Forma Financial Statements meeting the requirements of
SRC Rule 68, Form and Content of Financial Statements, shall be furnished as specified therein.

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Furnish the information required by Part Ill, Paragraph (A)(2)(b) of “Annex C”.

PART lI--OTHER INFORMATION

The issuer may, at its option, report under this item any information not previously reported in a report on
SEC Form 17-C. If disclosure of such information is made under this Part Ii, it need not be repeated in a report
on Form 17-C which would otherwise be required to be filed with respect to such information or in a subsequent
report on Form 17-Q.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

IS

ERLINDA I. BILDNER
Treasurer & CFO

SECForm17-Q 4
February 2001



BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Philcomsat Holdings Corporation, formerly Liberty Mines, Inc. was incorporated on May 10, 1956. On
January 10, 1997, the Corporation approved amendments of its Articles of Incorporation, changing its
primary purpose from embarking in the discovery, exploration, development and exploration of
mineral oils, petroleum in its natural state, rock or carbon oils and other volatile mineral substances to
a holding company and changing its name and declassifying its shares. These changes were filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on April 14, 1997, respectively. The authorized
capital of the Corporation is One Bilion Pesos (P1,000,000,000) divided into one billion
(1,000,000,000) common shares with a par value of P1.00 per share. Of the total authorized capital
stock, sixty million (60,000,000) shares are listed at the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).



PHILCOMSAT HOLDINGS CORPORATION
(A Subsidiary of Philippine Communications Sateilite Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2, 3, 4, 19 and 20) P225,920,167 P266,432,932 P208,057,744
Receivables — current (Notes 2, 3, 5, 17, 19 and 20) 241,713,328 118,472,425 212,534,088
Due from related parties (Notes 2, 3, 17, 19 and 20) 13,255,799 13,255,800 13,255,799
Other current assets (Notes 2, 3 and 6) 4,558,890 4,347,664 4,290,781
Total Current Assets 485,448,184 402,508,821 438,138,412
Noncurrent Assets
Receivables ~ noncurrent (Notes 2, 3, 5, 19 and 20) 8,000,000 55,000,000 37,000,000
Financial assets at fair value through
.other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

(Notes 2, 3, 7, 19 and 20) 987,959,056 1,000,642,752 998,192,651
Investment property (Notes 2, 3 and 8) 2,249,424 2,249,424 2,249,424
Right-of-use (ROU) assets (Notes 2, 3 and 12) 993,362 - 1,748,947
Property and equipment (Notes 2, 3 and 9) 39,742 435,415 69,835
Goodwill (Notes 2, 3 and 10) 1,319,429 1,319,429 1,319,429
Deferred tax assets — net (Notes 2, 3 and 16) 254,280 1,117,471 413,222

Total Noncurrent Assets 1,000,815,293  1,060,764,491  1,040,993,508

P1,486,263,477

P1,463,273,312

P1,479,131,920

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Trade and statutory payables (Notes 2, 3, 11, 19 and 20) P4,248,629 P5,539,685 P806,952
Due to a related party (Notes 2, 3, 17, 19 and 20) 3,948,624 3,948,624 3,948,624
Customers' deposits (Notes 2, 3, 12, 19 and 20) 1,237,874 1,237,874 1,237,874
Lease liabilities — current (Notes 2, 3, 12, 19 and 20) 798,581 - 1,599,265
Income tax payable (Notes 2 and 17) - - -
Total Current Liabilities 10,233,708 10,726,183 7,692,715
Noncurrent Liabilities
Deposit for future stock subscription (Notes 2 and 18) 18,894,000 18,894,000 18,894,000
Lease liabilities — noncurrent (Notes 2, 3, 12, 19 and 20) 243,197 - 243,197
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 19,137,197 18,894,000 19,137,197
Total Liabilities 29,370,905 29,620,183 26,729,912
Equity
Share capital (Notes 2 and 21) 996,391,254 996,391,254 996,391,254
Retained eamings (Notes 2, 7 and 21) 462,330,480 446,127,441 457,631,100
Other equity reserves (Notes 2, 7 and 21) (1,829,162) (8,865,566) {1,620,3486)

Total Equity

1,456,892,572

1,433,653,129

1,452,402,008

P1,486,263,477 P1,463,273,312 P1,479,131,920

See accompanying Notes to I?inancial Statements.



PHILCOMSAT HOLDINGS CORPORATION

(A Subsidiary of Philippine Communications Satellite Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED AND SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

From April 1 From April 1 From January 1 From January 1
to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019
{Unaudited) {Unaudited) {(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
REVENUE (Notes 2 and 13) P13,393,623 P15,661,711 P26,573,223 P30,192,376
COSTS AND EXPENSES
(Notes 2 and 14) (5,851,036) (7.020,257)  (18,872,681)  (14,370,830)
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) — net
(Notes 2, 7 and 15) (1,262,440) (1,548,884) {861,696) (1,326,926)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 6,280,147 7,092,570 6,838,846 14,494,620
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM)
INCOME TAX (Notes 2, 3 and 16)
Current 18,965 57,570 63,298 160,045
Deferred 105,534 (491,880) 158,942 (1,389,758)
124,499 (434,310) 222,240 (1,229,713)
NET INCOME P6,155,648 P7,526,880 P6,616,606 P15,724,333
BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE (Notes 2 and 18) P0.0062 P0.0076 P0.0066 P0.0158

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



PHILCOMSAT HOLDINGS CORPORATION

(A Subsidiary of Philippine Communications Satellite Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED AND SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

From April 1 From April 1 From January1 From January 1
to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019
{Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
NET INCOME P6,155,648 P7,526,880 P6,616,606 P15,724,333
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{LOSS) (Notes 2 and 7)
ltems that may be reclassified
to profit or loss
Unrealized gain (loss) on debt
instruments at FVOCI 15,582,177 11,409,096 11,043,273 14,812,798
items that may not be reclassified
to profit or loss
Unrealized gain (loss) on equity
instruments at FVOCI 18,785,128 128,314 (13,005,628) 16,186,019
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) P40,522,953 P19,064,290 P4,654,251 P46,723,150

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



PHILCOMSAT HOLDINGS CORPORATION

{A Subsidiary of Philippine Communications Satellite Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

From January 1 From January 1

to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019
{Unaudited) {Unaudited)

SHARE CAPITAL - P1 par value (Notes 2 and 21)
Authorized ~ 1,000,000,000 shares
Issued — 996,391,254 shares

P996,391,254  P996,391,254

RETAINED EARNINGS (Notes 2, 7 and 21)
Balance at beginning of period
Net income

Reclassification of cumulative fair value changes of equity instruments

measured at FVOCI sold from other comprehensive income
Realized loss on sale of equity instruments measured at FVOCI

457,631,100 432,550,308
6,616,606 15,724,333

(1,917,226) -
- (2,147,200)

Balance at end of period

462,330,480 446,127 441

OTHER EQUITY RESERVES (Notes 2, 7 and 21)
Balance at beginning of period
Unrealized gain {loss) for the period
Reclassification of cumulative fair value changes of
debt instruments measured at FVOC! sold to profit or foss
Reclassification of cumulative fair value changes of
equity instruments measured at FVOCI sold to retained eanings

(1,620,346)  (39,864,383)
(1,962,355) 30,998,817

(163,687) -

1,917,226 -

Balance at end of period

(1,829,162) (8,865,566)

TOTAL EQUITY

P1,45€,892,572 P1,433,653,129

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



PHILCOMSAT HOLDINGS CORPORATION
(A Subsidiary of Philippine Communications Satellite Corporation)
AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

From January1 From January 1
to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019

{Unaudited) (Unaudited)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

income before income tax P6,838,846 P14,494,620
Adjustments for:

Depreciation (Note 9) 785,678 1,455

Interest expense (Note 12) 16,788 -

Unrealized loss on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (FVPL) (Notes 6 and 15) 25,305 11,809
Realized gain on sale of debt instruments
measured at FVOC! (Notes 7 and 15) (163,687) -

Operating income before working capital changes 7,502,930 14,507,884
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables (Note 5) 820,760 (20,724)

Gther current assets (Note 6) (46,688) (925,584)
Increase (decrease).in trade and statutory payables (Note 11) 3,441,677 376,492
Net cash generated from operations 11,718,679 13,938,068
Collection of notes and loans receivable (Note 5) 114,000,000 7,000,000
Acquisitions of:

Financial assets at FVOC! (Note 7) (158,788,395) (158,230,062)

Notes and loans receivable (Note 5) (115,000,000) -
Proceeds from redemption and maturity of financial assets

at FVOCI (Note 7) 167,059,635 109,289,103
Income tax paid (310,024) (185,170)
Net cash used in operating activities 18,679,895 (28,188,061)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY

Additions to property and equipment (Note 9) - (17,324)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from due to a related party - 4,000,000
Payments of:
Lease liabilities (Note 12) (800,684) -
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 12) (16,788) -
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities (817,472) 4,000,000
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17,862,423 (24,205,385)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 208,057,744 280,638,317

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD P225,920,167 P266,432,932

-10-



From Januaryt1 From January 1
to June 30,' to June 30,
2020 2019

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

NONCASH FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Transfer from other noncurrent assets to investment property (Note 8) P- P2,232,100
Transfer to investment property from other noncurrent assets (Note 8) - (2,232,100)
P- P-

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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PHILCOMSAT HOLDINGS CORPORATION
(A Subsidiary of Philippine Communications Satellite Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019

AND FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED AND SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

1.

General Information

Corporate Information
Philcomsat Holdings Corporation (formerly Liberty Mines, Inc.) [the Parent Company] was

incorporated and registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 10, 1956
with the primary purpose of embarking in the discovery, exploration, development and exploitation of
mineral oils, petroleum in its natural state, rock or carbon oils and other volatile mineral substance
and with the secondary purpose of engaging in the business of mining in general. The Parent
Company ceased oil and mining operations in 1992.

On July 23, 1997, the SEC approved the amended Articles of Incorporation of the Parent Company
consisting of: a) change in its primary purpose from an exploration and mining company to a holding
company and revision of its secondary purpose clauses; and b) change of the corporate name from
Liberty Mines, inc. to Philcomsat Holdings Corporation.

The Parent Company started operations as a holding company on January 1, 2000. The Parent
Company derives income from money market placements, bank deposits, financial assets at FVOCI
and other investments.

On May 9, 2006, the SEC approved the extension of the Parent Company's corporate life for another
fifty (50) years.

On May 23, 2016, the Parent Company's Board of Directors (BOD) confirmed and ratified its
previous resolution increasing the authorized capital stock of the Parent Company from P1.0 billion,
divided into 1,000,000,000 shares with par value of P1 per share, to P3.0 billion, divided into
3,000,000,000 shares with par value of P1 per share. As at report date, the resolution is awaiting
ratification by the stockholders and pending application with SEC.

The Parent Company is 79.94% owned by Philippine Communications Satellite Corporation
(Philcomsat), a company incorporated in the Philippines. The ultimate parent company is Philippine
Overseas Telecommunications Corporation (POTC), a company also incorporated in the Philippines.
Philcomsat and POTC are both engaged in the telecommunications business.

The Parent Company and all of its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the Group") were
incorporated in the Philippines. The following are the subsidiaries and the respective percentages of
ownership as at June 30, 2020 and 2019 and December 31, 2019:

Percentage of Ownership

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
Philcomsat Management
Enterprises Inc. (PMEI) 100.00 - 100.00 -
Professional Stock Transfer
Inc. (PSTI)* - 100.00 - 100.00

*Parent Company's ownership in PST! is indirect through PMEI.

-12-



The principal activities of the subsidiaties are as follows:

Name of Subsidiaries Principal Activities
PMEI Management services
PSTI Stock transfer agency

The registered address of the Parent Company is at 12th Floor, Telecom Plaza Building, 316 Sen.
Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City.

Listing of Shares in Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
The Parent Company's original 60 million shares are listed and used to be traded in the PSE.

On May 3, 2007, the PSE suspended the trading of the Parent Company’s shares due to pending
compliance with certain structured reportorial requirements. On December 3, 2008, the SEC ordered
the suspension of the Parent Company's registration of securities from the date of the receipt of the
Order until the Parent Company is able to submit the reportorial requirements and fully pay the
corresponding penalties.

On April 1, 2014, the Parent Company, through its legal counsel, submitted to the SEC a letter
request for the lifting of the order of suspension and for a compromise payment of the penalties. The
SEC, on December 29, 2015, lifted the order of suspension and directed the Parent Company to file
an updated Registration Statement.

As at the date of report, the Parent Company is still in the process of preparing the updated
Registration Statement.

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards Council and adopted by the SEC, including SEC pronouncements. This financial reporting
framework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations
from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee.

Measurement Bases

The consolidated financial statements are presented in the Philippine Peso {Peso) which is the
Group’s functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest Peso, except as
otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for financial assets measured at FVPL and financial assets measured at FVOCI. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for an asset and fair
value of the consideration received in exchange for incurring a liability.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the transaction date.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

-13-



All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized in different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Fair values of financial assets at FVPL, financial assets at FVOCI, investment property and financial
assets and liabilities are disclosed in Notes 8, 7, 8 and 21, respectively.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Group adopted effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020:

* Amendments to PFRS 3, “Definition of a Business"

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the
assessment of a market participant’s ability to replace missing elements, and narrow the definition
of outputs. The amendments also add guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and add illustrative examples. An optional fair value concentration test is introduced
which permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business.

The amendments will apply on future business combinations of the Group, if any.

* Amendments to PAS 1 and PAS 8, "Definition of Material"
The amendments refine the definition of material in PAS 1 and align the definitions used across
PFRSs and other pronouncements. They are intended to improve the understanding of the

existing requirements rather than to significantly impact an entity's materiality judgments.

The adoption of these amendments is not expected to have significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

-14 -



New Accounting Standards. Amendments to Existing Standards and Interpretations

Effective Subseqguent to June 30, 2020

The standards, amendments and interpretations which have been issued but not yet effective as at
December 31, 2019 are disclosed below. Except as otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect
the adoption of the applicable new and amended PFRS to have a significant impact on the financial
position or performance.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2021
¢ PFRS 17, "Insurance Contracts”®

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
PFRS 4, "Insurance Contracts”. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of
insurance confracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardiess of the type
of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting madel for insurance contracts that is
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are
largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The
core of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaption for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
* A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or before January 1, 2021, with
comparative figures required. Early application is permitted.

The amendments are not applicable to the Group since the Group does not have activities that
are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts.

Deferred Effectivity

* Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, "Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture”

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is
recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the FSRC deferred the originat effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said
amendments until the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) completes its broader
review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of
accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint
ventures.
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The adoption of these amendments is not expected to have any significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

No Mandatory Effective Date

* PFRS 9, "Financial Instruments (Hedge Accounting and Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39)"

The amendments require the inclusion of general hedge accounting model in the notes disclosure
to the financial statements. The amendments allow early adoption of the requirement to present
fair value changes due to own credit on liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss
to be presented in the other comprehensive income.

These amendments are not applicable to the Group and expected not to have impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Parent Company. In assessing control, the
Parent Company considers if it is exposed, or has right, to variable retums from its investment with
the subsidiary and if it has the ability to affect those returns.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Parent
Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date such control ceases. The
results of operations of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date of acquisition or up to the date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Changes in the contralling equity ownership (i.e., acquisition of non-controlling interest or partial
disposal of interest over a subsidiary) that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions.

All intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses and unrealized gains and losses are’
eliminated in full.

Noncontrolling interests pertain to the portion of profit or loss and the net assets in subsidiaries not
held by the Parent Company and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Noncontrolling interests represent the interests of minority shareholders.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same accounting policies as that of the
Parent Company.

The financial statements of the Parent Company and PMEI are prepared for the same reporting year.

PSTI and the Parent Company do not have the same reporting periods. PSTI prepares its financial
statements as at and for the fiscal year ending June 30 which is different from the Parent Company’s
reporting period as at and for the calendar year ending December 31. For the purposes of
consolidation, PST| prepares financial statements (unaudited) as at and for the year ended
December 31.
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Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
current or noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is:

* Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liability is current when:

* ltis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

* ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as noncurrent.
Deferred income tax assets are classified as noncurrent assets.
Financial Assets and Liabilities

Date of Recognition
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. In
the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as
applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration
given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). The initial measurement of financial
instruments, except for those designated at FVPL includes transaction cost.

*Day 1" Difference

Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between
the transaction price and fair value (a "Day 1" difference) in profit or loss. In cases where there is no
observable data on inception, the Group deems the transaction price as the best estimate of fair
value and recognizes "Day 1" difference in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when
the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method
of recognizing the "Day 1" difference.

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following categories: (a)
financial assets at FVPL, (b) financial assets at amortized cost and (c) financial assets at FVOCI.
Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are classified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or financial
liabilities at amortized cost. The classification of a financial instrument largely depends on the
Group's business model and its contractual cash flow characteristics.
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Financial Assets at FVPL
Financial assets at FVPL are either classified as held for trading or designated at FVPL. A financial
instrument is classified as held for trading if it meets either of the following conditions:

* itis acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term:

* on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* itis a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

This category includes equity instruments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at
FVOCI at initial recognition. This category includes debt instruments whose cash flows are not "solely
for payment of principal and interest" assessed at initial recognition of the assets, or which are not
held within a business model whose objective is either to callect contractual cash flows, or to both
collect contractual cash flows and sell.

The Group may, at initial recognition, designate a financial asset meeting the criteria to be classified
at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as a financial asset at FVPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces accounting mismatch that would arise from measuring these assets.

After initial recognition, financial assets at FVPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized
gains or losses arising from the fair valuation of financial assets at FVPL are recognized in profit or
loss.

As at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, the Group's marketable securities,
presented under "other current assets" are classified under this category (see Note 6).

Financial Assets at Amoriized Cost
Financial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

* the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and,

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
financial assets are derecognized and through amortization process. Financial assets at amortized
cost are included under current assets if realizability or collectability is within 12 months after the
reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

As at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, the Group's cash and cash equivalents,

receivables (excluding advances subject to liquidation) and due from related parties are classified
under this category (see Notes 4, 5 and 17).
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Financial Assets at FVOCI

For debt instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristic and are not designated at
FVPL under the fair value option, the financial assets shall be measured at FVOCI if both of the
following conditions are met:

* the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For equity instruments, the Group may irrevocably designate the financial asset to be measured at
FVOCI in case the above conditions are not met.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. After initial
recognition, interest income (calculated using the effective interest rate method), foreign currency
gains or losses and impairment gains or losses of debt instruments measured at FVOCI are
recognized directly in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognized in OCI are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

Dividends from equity instruments held at FVOCI are recognized in profit or loss when the right to
receive payment is established, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Unrealized gains or losses from equity instruments are recognized in OCI and
presented in the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position. These fair value
changes are recognized in equity and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

As at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, the Group designated its investments in
quoted bonds, quoted shares of stocks, UITF and club membership as financial assets at FVOCI
(see Note 7).

Financial Liabilities at FVPL
Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVPL are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in PFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any
financial liability at FVPL.

The Group does not have financial liabilities at FVPL as at March 31, 2020 and 2019, and
December 31, 2019.
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Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities at amortized cost when the substance of the
contractual arrangement resuits in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holder, or to settle the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized or impaired or through the
amortization process.

As at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, the Group's accounts payable and accrued
expenses, due to a related party and customers' deposits are classified under this category (see
Notes 11, 12 and 17).

Reclassification

The Group reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business model for
managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification date).

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of
the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost of
the financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCI.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at
amortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets at
amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in QOCI, and any difference between the new
amortized cost and maturity amount, are amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest method. If the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any
gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be
recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial asset is
subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost and FVOC!

The Group records an allowance for ECL which is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The difference is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's original effective
interest rate,
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For debt instruments and other financial assets at amortized cost, the ECL is based on the 12-month
ECL, which pertains to the portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the aliowance will be based on the
lifetime ECL. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and consider reasonable and supportable information,
that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets
A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

* the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement; or

* the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial asset,
the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the financial
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred financial asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recoghition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original
liability.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Group could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original liability and fair
value of the new liability is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshald, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or fees
paid or received in the restructuring.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is intention to setile on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the
related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Classification of Financial Instrument between Liability and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

* Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;

* Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or

* Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial asset
to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.

Advances Subject to Liquidation

Advances subject to liquidation pertain to cash advances to employees used for the Group's
operations that are subject to liquidation. These are initially measured at cost less impairment in
value, if any.

Other Current Assets
Other current assets consist of:

Creditable Withholding Tax
Creditable withholding tax is an amount that is withheld from income payments. This is deducted
from income tax payable.

Input Value-added Tax (VAT)

Input VAT represents tax imposed on the Group by its suppliers for the acquisition of goods and
services required under the Philippine taxation laws and regulations. Input VAT is recognized as an
asset and will be used to offset the Group's current VAT liability.

Prepayments
Prepayments include expenses already paid but not yet incurred. These are measured at cost less
amortization.

investment Property

Investment property is defined as a property, such as land or building, held for the purposes of
earning rentals, for capital appreciation or both. This property is not held to be used in production or
sale in the ordinary course of business.
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Investment property is initially measured at acquisition cost. An investment property acquired through
an exchange transaction is measured at fair value of the asset acquired unless the fair value of such
an asset cannot be measured, in which case, the investment property acquired is measured at the
carrying amount of asset given up.

Subsequent to initial recognition, depreciable investment properties are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Expenditures incurred after the investment
properties have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance costs, are normally
charged against current operations in the period in which the costs are incurred.

Depreciation of an investment property is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal
of an investment property is recognized in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
property and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Property and Eguipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
impairment in value. The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operations, such as
repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the period the
costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have
resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an
item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of property and equipment. Cost also includes any
asset retirement obligation and interest on borrowed funds used. When property and equipment are
sold or retired, their costs and accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, are
eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the
profit or loss of such period.

The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are as follows:

Number of Years

Office equipment 3
Transportation equipment 3-5
Fumniture and fixtures 3
Office improvement 3-5

The useful lives of each of the property and equipment are estimated based on the period over which
the asset is expected to be available for use. Such estimation is based on a collective assessment of
industry practice and experience with similar assets. The property and equipment's usefu! lives and
depreciation and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date.
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Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use
and no further depreciation is charged to current operations.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss in the year the item is de recognized.

Business Combinations and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value,
and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the
acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree pertaining to instruments that
represent present ownership interests and entitle the holders to a proportionate share of the net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the het assets in
the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controliing interest are measured at fair value unless
another management basis is required by PFRS. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed
and included in costs and expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date, including the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree, if any.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognized in PAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of PAS 39, it
is measured in accordance with the appropriate PFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured until it is finally settled and accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initiglly measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest, and any previous interest held,
over the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. After initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (CGU) that are expected to
benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquire are
assigned to those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the operation within CGU units is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operations when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in
this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the CGU retained.
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If necessary information, such as fair value of assets and liabilities acquired, is not available by the
end of the reporting period in which the business combination occurs, provisional amounts are used
for a period not exceeding one year from the date of acquisition or measurement period. During this
period, provisional amounts recognized for a business combination may be retrospectively adjusted if
relevant information has been obtained or becomes available.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that its advances subject
to liquidation, other current assets (excluding financial assets at FVPL), investment properties and
property and equipment may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company makes an
estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Any impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the profit or loss unless the asset is carried at
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such
reversal, the depreciation charge are adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of
each CGU, to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be
reversed in future periods.

Depaosit for Future Subscription

Deposit for future stock subscription represents the amount received by the Company which it
records as such with a view of applying the same as payment for additional issuance of shares or
increase in capital stock.

This is presented as part of liability because the Company is yet to comply with the conditions
prescribed by the SEC.

Equity

Share Capital
Share capital is measured at par vaiue for all shares issued.
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Retained Eamings
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss, net of any dividend
declaration.

Other Equity Reserves

Other equity reserves comprise of items of income and expense that are not recognized in profit or
loss in accordance with PFRS. Other equity reserves of the Group pertains to cumulative unrealized
gains on financial assets at FVOCI.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance abligation in the contract
has been satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenue is recognized over time if one of
the following criteria is met: (a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as
the Group perform its obligations; (b) the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or (¢) the Group's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date. Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time.

The Group also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an
agent. The Group has assessed that it acts as a principal in all of its revenue sources.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Interest Income
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective yield of the
asset.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

Rent Income

Rent income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term since performance obligation
is satisfied over time during the period when the Company gives the lessee the right to use the
leased property.

Service Fees

Performance obligation is satisfied over time with reference to the stage of completion at the
reporting date measured principally on the basis of the estimated physical completion of the contract
work. Billings and collections are made in relation to the specific provisions on the contract as
agreed by the parties.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recoghized as an expense immediately.

Retainer Fee and Transfer Fee
Revenue is recognized under the accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the related
agreements.

Gain on Sale of Financial and Nonfinancial assets

Gain on sale of financial assets at FVOCI and nonfinancial assets are computed as the difference
between the proceeds and its carrying amount.
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Costs and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefit
related to a decrease in an asset or an increase of liability has arisen and can be measured reliably.
Costs and expenses are recognized in the profit or loss in the period these are incurred.

Cost of Services
Cost of services are recognized as expense when the related service is performed.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses are incurred in the direction and general administration of day-
to-day operation of the Group and are generally recognized when the service is used or the expense
is incurred.

Employee Benefits

The Group recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an expense for services rendered
by employees during the accounting period. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to
be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and
the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Short-term employee benefit liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.

Leases

The Group assesses whether the contracts are, or contain, a lease. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Group assesses
whether, throughout the period of use, it has both of the following:

i the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset: and,

ii. the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

If the Group has the right to control the use of an identified asset for only a portion of the term of the
contract, the contract contains a lease for that portion of the term.

The Group also assesses whether a contract contains a lease for each potential separate lease
component.

The Group as a Lessee

At the commencement date, the Group recognizes ROU asset and lease liability for all leases,
except for leases with lease terms of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value in which case the lease payments associated with those leases are
recognhized as an expense on a straight-line basis.

ROU Asset
At commencement date of the lease contract, the Group measures ROU asset at cost. The initial
measurement of ROU asset includes the following:

* the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities;

* lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

-27-



* initial direct costs; and

* an estimation of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, when applicable.

After the commencement date, the ROU asset is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the related lease
liability. The ROU asset is amortized over the lease term.

Lease Liability

At commencement date, the Group measures a lease liability at the present value of future lease
payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.
Otherwise, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of a lease liability comprise the following:
* fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

* variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

* amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; and

* the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
that option

A lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost. Interest on the lease liability and any
variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liability are recognized in profit or
loss unless these are capitalized as costs of another asset. Variable lease payments not included in
the measurement of the lease liability are recognized in profit or loss when the event or condition that
triggers those payments occurs.

If there is a change in the lease term or if there is a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset, the lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
considering the revised lease payments on the basis of the revised lease term or reflecting the
change in amounts payable under the purchase option. The lease liability is also remeasured using
the revised lease payments if there is a change in the amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee or a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate used to determine those payments.

Foreian Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded using the functional currency exchange rate
at the date of the transaction. Outstanding monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are restated using the closing functional currency exchange rate at the financial reporting
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from foreign currency transactions and restatement
of balances are recognized in profit or loss.
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Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Related party relationships exist when ane party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. This includes: (1) individual owning, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or under common control with, the
Parent Company; (2) associates; and (3) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the
voting power of the Parent Company that gives them significant influence over the Parent Company
and close members of the family of any such individual.

The key management personnel of the Group and post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
Group's employees, if any, are also considered to be related parties.

Transactions between related parties are on an arm's length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with non-related parties.

Income Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in @ transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and,

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward benefits of
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCOQ), to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused NOLCO and carry-forward benefits of MCIT can be utilized except:

* where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax law) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income over the weighted average number of
issued and outstanding common shares during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed as if the potential common share or instrument that may
entitle the holder to common share were exercised as of the beginning of the year.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to seitle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific fo the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest
expense. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized
as an asset in the consolidated statement of financial position but only when the receipt of the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's financial position at the
reporting date (adjusting events), if any, are reflected in the consolidated financial statements when
material. Post year-end events that are non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
consolidated financial statements when material.

Segment Information

The Group is engaged in investing of funds in various financial assets, service agreements with the
government and stock transfer agency. The Group has aggregated these revenue-generating
activities into a single operating segment as these segments are both passive in nature and have the
same economic characteristics. The Group's revenue-generating assets are located in the
Philippines.
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3. Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosures of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about the estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

Judaments
In the process of applying the Group's policies, the Group has made certain judgments, apart from

those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.

Establishing Control Over Investment in Subsidiaties

The Group determines that it has control over its subsidiary by considering, among others, its power
over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. The following are also considered:

* Rights arising from other contractual agreements; and
* The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

Classifying Financial Instruments

The Group exercises judgment in classifying financial instruments in accordance with PFRS 9. The
Group classifies a financial instrument, or its components, on initial recognition as a financial asset,
a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the Company's business model and its
contractual cash flow characteristics and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an
equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its
classification in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

Classification of financial instruments is disclosed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distinguishing Investment Properties and Owner-occupied Properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making its judgment,
the Group considers whether the property is held primarily to earn rentals or capital appreciation or
both or used for operations and administrative purposes of the Group.

Carrying amount of investment property amounting to P2.2 million as at June 30, 2020 and 2019,
and December 31, 2019 (see Note 8).

Determining Classification of Lease Arrangements and Appropriate Lease Term and Discount Rates
The Group has entered into lease agreements as a lessor.

Critical judgment was exercised by the Group to distinguish such lease agreement as an operating or
finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risk and rewards of ownership of the
properties covered by the agreements.

On January 1 and September 1, 2019, the Group's lease agreements of its office space were
renewed and it qualified as leases under PFRS 16.

Lease liabilities and ROU assets were recognized. Payments of lease liabilities are allocated over
the principal liability and finance costs. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of liability for
each year. The ROU assets are depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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The lease of office space is renewable upon mutual agreement by both parties to be covered by a
separate and new lease agreement. Accordingly, the renewal option was not considered in the lease
term for purposes of the adoption of PFRS 186.

Significant management judgment was likewise exercised by the Group in determining the discount
rate, whether implicit rate, if readily available or incremental rate, to be used in calculating the
present value of ROUs asset and lease liabilities.

Reassessments are made on a continuing basis whether changes should be reflected on the amount
of lease liability due to circumstances affecting lease payments and discount rates,

Determining Operating Segments

Although each revenue-generating activity represents a separate operating segment, management
has concluded that there is basis for aggregation into a single operating segment as allowed under
PFRS 8, "Operating Segments", due to their similar passive nature and economic characteristics.

Assessing Provisions and Conltingencies

The Group evaluates legal and administrative proceedings to which it is involved based on analysis
of potential results. Management and its legal counsels do not believe that any current proceedings
will have material adverse effects on its financial position and results of operations. It is possible,
however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates or in
the effectiveness of strategies relating to these proceedings.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation of
uncertainty at reporting date that may have significant risks of causing material adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting year are discussed below.

Assessing ECL on Debt Instruments

The Group determines the ECL based on the 12-month ECL, which pertains to the portion of lifetime
ECLs that result from default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after reporting date. When there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

The Group assessed that the credit risk on debt instruments has not increased significantly since
initial recognition as these financial assets are determined to have low credit risk and are entered into
with reputable banks, financial institutions and other counterparties.

No ECL on these debt instruments was recognized for the quarters ended and six months ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019. The carrying amounts of financial assets at amortized cost and FVOCI are
as follows:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019

{Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

Cash and cash equivalents* P225,905,167 P266,417,932 P208,042,744
Receivables** 249,155,423 171,731,079 249,011,396
Due from related parties 13,255,799 13,255,800 13,255,799
Investment in quoted bonds measured at FVOCI 663,652,481 651,161,093 673,893,960

*exciuding cash on hand amounting toP15,000 as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019.
“excivding advances subject ta liquidation totafling P557,905, P1,741,346 end P522,692as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, respectively.
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Determining Fair Value of Financial Assets at FVPL and FVOC/

The Group carries financial assets at FVOCI at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Determining the fair value of financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI requires extensive use of
accounting estimates and judgment. The Group determined the fair values of financial assets at
FVPL and FVOCI using a combination of available market prices in active markets for identical
assets (Level 1) and prices computed using significant observable inputs (Level 2). Any changes in
the fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would affect other comprehensive income.

The fair value of financial assets at FVPL amounted to P86,760, P101,461 and P112,065 as at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, respectively (see Notes 6 and 20).

The fair value of financial assets at FVOCI amounted to P988.0 million, P1,000.6 million and P998.2
million as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, respectively (see Notes 7 and 20).

Estimating Useful Lives of Investment Property and Property and Equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of investment property and property and equipment based on
the period over which they are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives are
reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical
wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the
investment property and property and equipment. In addition, the estimation of the useful lives of
investment property and property and equipment is based on the collective assessment of industry
practice, internal technical evaluation and experience similar assets.

The carrying amount of investment property amounted to P2.2 million as at June 30, 2020 and 2019,
and December 31, 2019 (see Note 8).

The carrying amount of the property and equipment amounted to P39,742, P435,415 and P69,835 as
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, respectively (see Note 9).

Estimating Impairment Losses on Nonfinancial Assets Other than Goodwill

An impairment review is performed when certain impairment indicators are present. The Group
determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the asset is allocated. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

No impairment loss was recognized for the quarters ended and six months ended June 30, 2020 and
2019.

The carrying amounts of nonfinancial assets are as follows:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Investment property P2,249,424 P2,249,424 P2,249,424
ROU asset 993,362 - 1,748,947
Advances subject to liquidation 557,005 1,741,346 522,692
Property and equipment 39,742 435,415 69,835
Other current assets* 4,472,130 4,246,203 4,178,716

‘excluding finencial assats at FVPL amounting to PB6,760, P101,461 and P112,065 ss at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and Dscember 31, 2019.
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Estimating Impairment Losses on Goodwill

The Group tests annually whether any impairment in goodwill is to be recognized, in accordance with
related accounting policy in Note 2. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based
on the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use calculations which require the use of
estimates. Based on the impairment testing conducted, the recoverable armounts of the CGUs as at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, calculated based on value in use are greater than
the corresponding camying amounts (including goodwill) of the CGUs. The carrying amount of
goodwill amounted to P1.3 million as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019. No
impairment loss was recognized for the quarters ended and six months ended June 30, 2020 and
2019 (see Note 10).

Assessing Recoverabiiity of Deferred Tax Assefs

The Group's assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary
differences is based on the forecasted taxable income of the following reporting periods. This
forecast is based on the Group's past results and future expectations on revenue and expenses.

The Group recognized deferred tax assets as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019
amounted to P254,280, P1,117,471 and P413,222, respectively (see Note 16).

The Company did not recognize a portion of its deferred tax assets amounting to P2.6 million, P1.6
million and P4.7 million as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, respectively,
because the management has assessed that these may not be realized because future taxable
income may not be sufficient against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized (see Note 16).

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

June 30, June 30, December 31,

2020 2019 2019
{(Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Audited)

Cash on hand and in banks P55,740,076 P16,542,842 P36,015,079
Cash equivalents 170,180,091 249,890,090 172,042,665

P225,920,167 P266,432,932 P208,057,744

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates.

Cash equivalents pertain to special savings and time deposits, with terms of varying periods up to
three (3) months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eam interest at
prevailing special savings and time deposit rates.

Interest income eamed from cash in banks and cash equivalents amounted to P0.8 million and P3.2

million for the quarters ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and P1.5 million and P6.2
million for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 13).
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5. Receivables

This account consists of:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019

(Unaudited) {(Unaudited) (Audited)

Notes and loans receivable
Corporate notes (Note 17) P208,905,002 P104,247,002 P108,905,002
Promissory notes issued by various

financial institutions 35,966,588 59,966,588 134,966,588
Interest receivable 2,990,981 5,744,088 3,923,356
Retainer fee receivable 993,360 1,559,866 978,548
Advances subject to liquidation 557,905 1,741,346 522,692
Dividend receivable 213,425 214,825 157,535
Others 98,334 56,710 92,634
249,725,595 173,530,425 249,546,355

Less allowance for ECL (12,267) (58,000) (12,267)
249,713,328 173,472,425 249,534,088

Less noncurrent portion (8,000,000) (55,000,000) (37,000,000)
Current portion of receivables P241,713,328 P118,472,425 P212,534,088

Movements in the allowance for ECL are summarized below:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Balance at the beginning of the year P12,267 P58,000 P58,000
Additions - - 12,267

Reversal - - (58,000)
Balance at the end of the year P12,267 P58,000 P12,267

Notes and Loans Receivable

Corporate Notes

Corporate notes outstanding as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019 pertain to short-
term corporate promissory notes issued by various entities, with terms of thirty-five days up to one
year and earn interest ranging from 5.5% to 11.0% per annum.

Promissory Notes Issued by Financial Institutions
Unsecured promissory notes are issued by various financial institutions with terms ranging from two
to ten years and earn interest ranging from 4% to 7% per annum.

Interest income earned from corporate notes and promissory notes issued by various financial
institutions amounted to P1.6 million and P1.3 million for the quarters ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively, and P5.0 million and P2.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively (see Note 13).

Retainer Fee Receivable

This account consists of retainer fee receivables which are collectible on demand and are
noninterest-bearing.
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Advances Subiject to Liquidation

Advances subject to liquidation pertains mainly to advances made to officers for operations of the
Group.

. Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019

{Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Audited)
Creditable withholding tax P2,874,371 P2,371,841 P2,627,645
Input VAT 1,597,759 1,857,428 1,551,071
Financial assets at FVPL 86,760 101,461 112,065
Prepaid insurance - 16,934 -

P4,558,890 P4,347,664 P4,280,781

The fair value of financial assets at FVPL is determined based on quoted market bid prices at the
close of business on the reporting date since most of these are actively traded in an organized
financial market. The fair value measurement of financial assets measured at FVPL is classified as
Level 1.

. Financial Assets at FVOCI

This account consists of:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Audited)

Investments in:

Quoted bonds P663,652,481 P651,161,093 P673,893,960
Quoted shares of stocks 193,891,108 217,583,729 215,308,854
UITFs 124,815,467 129,127,930 103,889,837
Club memberships 5,600,000 2,770,000 5,100,000

P987,959,056 P1,000,642,752 P988,192,651

Movements of financial assets at FVOCI and cumulative unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at
FVOCI are as follows:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019
{Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Cost
Balance at beginning of periad P399,812,987 P962,714,559 P962,714,559
Additions 158,788,395 158,230,062 324,494,312
Disposals (168,813,174)  (111,436,303) (287,395,874)
Balance at end of period 989,788,218 1,009,508,318 989,812,997
Forward
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June 30, June 30, December 31,

2020 2019 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

Cumulative Unrealized Gain (Loss)
Balance at beginning of period (1,620,346) (39,864,383) (39,864,383)
Unrealized fair value gain (loss) during the period (1,962,355) 30,998,817 40,299,945

Reclassification of cumulative fair value changes of

debt instruments measured at FVOCI sold

to profit or loss (Note 15) {163,687) - 2,687,077
Reclassification of cumulative fair vaiue changes of

equity instruments measured at FYOCI sold

to retained eamings 1,917,226 - (4,742,985)
Balance at end of period {1,829,162) (8,865,566) (1,620,346)
Carrying amount P987,959,056 P1,000,642,752 P998,192,651

Interest income earned from financial assets at FVOCI amounted to P7.7 million and P7.4 million for
the quarters ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and P13.8 million and P15.0 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 13).

Dividend income earned from financial assets at FVOCI amounted to P1.8 million and P2.2 million
for the quarters ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and P3.4 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 (see Note 13).

Realized gain on sale of debt instruments at FVOCI recognized directly to profit or loss amounted to
P98,874 and nil for the quarters ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and P163,687 and nil
for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Realized loss on sale of equity instruments at FVOCI recognized directly to retained earnings
amounted to P1.9 million and nil for the quarters ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The fair value of these financial assets are determined based on quoted market bid prices at the
close of business as at reporting date since most of these are actively traded in an organized
financial market. The fair value measurement of the financial assets at FVOCI is classified as Level 1
(Quoted bonds, shares of stock and club memberships) and level 2 (UITFs).

No ECL was recognized for investments in quoted bonds for the quarters ended and six months
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.

. Investment Property

Movements of the account are as follows:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019
(Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Audited)
Cost
Balance at beginning of period P2,249,424 P~ P~
Transfer from noncurrent assets - 2,232,100 2,232,100
Additions - 17,324 17,324
Disposal - - -
Carrying amount P2,249,424 P2,249,424 P2,249,424
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The investment property represents parcel of land of one thousand two hundred (1,200) square
meters located at Pasinay, Bagac, Bataan.

The acquisition cost and transaction costs advanced in 2018 was presented under other noncurrent
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In January 16, 2019, the land title was transferred to the name of PMEI. The amount in the account
other noncurrent asset amounting to P2,232,100 was transferred under investment property in the
consolidated statement of financial position. This transaction is considered as a honcash financial
information in the statement of cash flows.

Additional transaction costs was incurred in connection with the processing of transfer of land title to
the PME! amounting to P17,234 in 2019.

Property and Equipment

Movements in this account are as follows:

December 31, June 30,
2019 2020
(Audited) Additions Disposals {Unaudited)
Cost
Transportation equipment P5,011,638 P— P~ P5,011,638
Furniture and fixtures 3,528,775 - - 3,528,775
Office equipment 1,187,730 - - 1,187,730
Office improvement 39,325 - - 39,325
9,767,468 - - 9,767,468
Less accumulated depreciation
Transportation equipment 4,985,251 6,089 - 4,991,340
Furniture and fixtures 3,528,775 - - 3,528,775
Office equipment 1,144,282 24,004 - 1,168,286
Office improvement 39,325 - - 39,325
9,697,633 30,093 - 9,727,726
P69,835 P39,742
December 31, June 30,
2018 2019
(Audited) Additions Disposals {Unaudited)
Cost
Transportation equipment P5,011,638 P- P~ P5,011,638
Furniture and fixtures 3,528,775 - - 3,528,775
Office equipment 1,429,848 - - 1,429,848
Office improvement 39,325 - - 39,325
10,009,586 - - 10,009,586
Less accumulated depreciation
Transportation equipment 4,952,685 - - 4,952,685
Furniture and fixtures 3,528,775 - - 3,528,775
Office equipment 1,051,931 1,455 - 1,063,386
Office improvement 39,325 - - 39,325
9,572,716 1,455 - 9,574,171
P436,870 P435.415

-38-



December 31, December 31,

2018 2019
(Audited) Additions Disposals (Audited)
Cost
Transportation equipment P5,011,638 P- P- P5,011,638
Furniture and fixtures 3,528,775 - - 3,528,775
Office equipment 1,187,730 - - 1,187,730
Office improvement 39,325 - - 39,325
9,767,468 - - 9,767,468
Less accumulated depreciation
Transportation equipment 4,952,685 32,566 - 4,985,251
Furniture and fixtures 3,528,775 - - 3,528,775
Office equipment 1,080,007 54,275 - 1,144,282
Office improvement 39,325 - - 39,325
9,610,792 86,841 - 9,697,633
P156,676 P69,835

Depreciation expense from the property and equipment is allocated as follows:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2018 2019

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Cost of services (Note 14) P- P- P440
General and administrative expenses (Note 14) 30,093 1,455 86,401
P30,093 P1,455 P86,841

Fully-depreciated property and equipment being used by the Company amounted to P8.7 million as
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and Decemnber 31, 2019.

10. Business Combination and Goodwill

Goodwill
Goodwill pertains to the acquisition of PSTI by PMEI amounting to P1.3 million.

Management assessed that the recoverable amount of PSTI, the CGU to which the goodwill is
allocated, exceeds its carrying amount. In estimating the related value in use, management used a
cash flow projection based on past performance of the acquiree covering a five-year period at a
discount rate of 4.44%. Cash flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated using the
Group's average historical growth rate.

No impairment on goodwill was recognized for the quarters ended and six months ended June 30,
2020 and 2019.
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11. Trade and Statutory Payables

This account consists of

June 30, June 30, December 31,

2020 2019 2019

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses P3,671,519 P4,768,330 P244,248
Statutory payables 577,110 771,355 562,704
P4,248 629 P5,539,685 P806,952

Accounts payable are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on a 30-day credit term.

Accrued expenses pertain primarily to accrued trust and brokers' fees and dues and subscriptions.

Statutory payables pertain to expanded withholding taxes and other payables to government

agencies remitted in the subsequent month.

12. Lease Commitments

The Group As a Lessee

The Group has a lease agreement with Philcomsat for its office space for a term of two years subject
to renewal under mutual agreement of both parties. In 2019, the lease contracts were renewed. The

annual rent is subject to escalation fee of 5%.

Amounts recognized in profit and loss:

From April 1 From April 1 From January1 From January 1
to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Depreciation on ROU assets P377,793 P- P755,585 P-
Interest on lease liabilities 7,568 - 16,788 -
Rent expense - 388,908 - 777,812
P385,361 P388,306 P772,373 P777,812
Movements in the ROU assets are presented below:
June 30, December 31,
2020 2019
{Unaudited) (Audited)
Balance at beginning of period P1,748,947 P-
Additions - 3,022,341
Depreciation (Note 14) (755,585) (1,273,394)
Balance end of period P993,362 P1,748,947
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Depreciation expense from the ROU assets is allocated as follows:

From April 1 From April 1 From January 1 From January 1
to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Cost of services 98,082 P- P124,832 P~
General and admistrative expenses 279,711 - 630,753 -
P377,793 P- P755,585 P-
Movements in the lease liabilities are presented below:

June 30, December 31,

2020 2019
{Unaudited) (Audited)

Balance at beginning of period 1,842,462 P-
Additions - 3,022,341
Interest expense (Note 14) 16,788 115,750
Payments (817,472) (1,295,629)
Balance at end of period P1,041,778 P1,842,462

Total cash outflows for the payment of lease liabilities amounted to P0.8 million and P1.3 million as at

June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

The present value of the minimum lease payments for each of the following periods are as follows:

June 30, December 31,

2020 2019

{Unaudited) (Audited)

Not later than one year P798,582 P1,599,266
More than one year but not later than five years 243,196 243,196
More than five years - -
P1,041,778 P1,842,462

The future minimum lease payments for each of the following periods are as follows:

June 30, December 31,
2020 2019

{Unaudited) (Audited)
Not later than one year P816,702 P1,664,252
More than one year but not later than five years 246,775 246,775
More than five years - -
Total minimum lease obligation 1,063,477 1,911,027
Less future finance charges on lease liabilities 21,699 68,565
P1,041,778 P1,842,462
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The Company's minimum lease payments are as follows:

Minimum lease

June 30, 2020 (Unaudited) payments Interest Principal
Not later than one year P816,702 P18,121 P798,581
More than one year but not later than five years 246,775 3,678 243,197

More than five years

P1,063,477 P21,699 P1,041,778

Minimum lease

December 31, 2019 (Audited) payments Interest Principal
Not later than one year P1,664,252 P64,987 P1,599,265
More than one year but not later than five years 246,775 3,578 243,197

More than five years - -
P1,911,027 P68,565 P1,842,462

13. Revenue
Disaggregation of revenue is as follows:

From April 1 From April 1 From January 1 From January 1

to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Revenue:

Interest income P10,083,564 P11,893,606 P20,204,349 P23,908,154
Dividend income (Note 7) 1,759,338 2,156,942 3,403,413 3,401,895
Retainer fee 1,412,035 1,345,035 2,764,071 2,537,571
Stock transfer fee 18,741 53,872 81,446 114,832
Other service fee 119,944 212,256 119,944 229,924

P13,393,623 P15,661,711 P26,573,223 P30,192,376

Interest income included in revenue as shown in the consolidated statements of income is earned
from the following:

From April 1 From April 1 From January1 From January 1

to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019

(Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P782,041 P3,209,818 P1,464,979 P6,238,015
Receivables (Note 5) 1,628,142 1,317,362 4,950,001 2,668,571
Financial assets at FVQCI (Note 7) 7,673,381 7,366,426 13,789,369 15,001,568

P10,083,564 P11,893,606 P20,204,349 P23,008,154

Retainer fee pertains to monthly retainer fees and earned by PSTI being a stock transfer agent.
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14. Costs and Expenses
This account consists of:

From April 1 From April 1 From January1 From January 1
to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Cost of services:

Salaries and other benefits P431,797 P316,132 P781,244 P583,181
Professional fee 328,185 - 708,565 -
Depreciation (Notes 8 and 12) 98,082 - 124,832 -
Transportation and travel 52,276 - 91,629 -
Dues and subscription 18,897 - 33,070 -
Communication, light and water 11,703 - 32,346 -
940,940 316,132 1,771,686 583,181
General and administrative expenses:

Taxes and licenses 26,963 24,111 6,250,172 676,284
Professional fees 2,507,776 3,359,966 5,559,084 6,841,015
Directors' fees (Note 17) 950,000 900,000 1,850,000 1,800,000
Bank charges 429,264 403,496 835,607 776,543
Representation and entertainment 250,726 368,116 735,330 770,024
Depreciation (Notes 8 and 12) 294,757 727 660,846 1,455
Transportation and travel 307,029 435,740 536,093 875,880
Legal fees - 505,500 369,139 636,289
Dues and subscription 62,899 61,347 104,373 126,194
Office supplies 9,531 81,655 80,903 105,656
Communication, light and water 32,649 46,307 67,976 151,817
Repairs and maintenance 17,857 550 17,857 550
Interest expense (Note 12) 7,568 - 16,788 -
Rent (Note 12) - 388,906 - 777,812
Insurance - 3,485 - 4,607
Others 13,077 124,219 16,827 243,523
4,910,096 6,704,125 17,100,995 13,787,649

P5,851,036 P7,020,257 P18,872,681 P14,370,830

15. Other Income (Charges)

This account consists of:

From April 1 From April 1 From January1 From January 1
to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Realized gain on sale of debt
instruments measured at FVOCI

(Note 7) P98,874 P- P163,687 P-
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (1,336,009) (1,548,884) (1,000,078) (1,315,117)
Unrealized loss on financial assets

at FVPL (Note 6) (25,305) (25,305) (11,809)

(P1,262,440) {P1,548,884) (P861,696) (P1,326,926)
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16. Income Tax

The composition of provision for current income tax is as follows:

From April 1 From April 1 From January1 From January 1

to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,

2020 2018 2020 2019

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited)

RCIT P- P- P- P-
MCIT 18,965 57,570 63,298 160,045
P18,965 P57,570 P63,298 P160,045

The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at statutory tax rate to actual income tax

expense (benefit) as presented in the consolidated statement of income are as follows:

From April 4 From April 1 From January1 From January 1
to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019
{Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Income tax at statutory rate P1,884,044 P2,127,771 P2,051,654 P4,348,386
Change in unrecognized deferred
tax assets 1,584,922 1,166,247 2,595,000 1,606,198
Add (deduct) tax effects of:
Nontaxable:
Realized loss on sale of debt
instruments measured
at FVOCI (29,662) - (49,106) -
Unrealized loss (gain) on
financial assets at FVPL 7,592 7.592 -
Dividend income (527,802) {647,083) (1,021,024) (1,020,569)
Interest income already
subjected to a final tax (2,947,427) (3,187,886) {5,496,970) (6,386,888)
Nondeductible expenses 152,832 106,641 2,135,094 223,160
P124,499 (P434,310) P222,240 (P1,229,713)
The components of the recognized net deferred tax assets of the Group are as follows:
June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019
{Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Deferred tax assets:
NOLCO P98,743 P420,077 P279,838
MCIT 151,857 287,617 129,704
Allowance for doubtful accounts 3,680 17,400 3,680
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - 392,377 -
P254,280 P1,117,471 P413,222
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The components of the Group's unrecognized deferred tax assets are as follows:

June 30, June 30, December 31,

2020 2019 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

NOLCO P2,266,031 P1,606,198 P3,986,798
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) 300,023 - 605,131
MCIT 28,946 - 151,897
P2,595,000 P1,606,198 P4,743,826

The Parent Company did not recognize deferred tax assets amounting to P2.6 million, P1.6 million
and P4.7 million as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019, respectively, because
management assessed that these may not be realized because future taxable income may not be
sufficient against which the tax benefits ¢can be claimed or deducted.

17. Related Party Transactions

The Company has transactions with related parties as follows:

Amount of Transactions

(in millions) Outstanding Balance
From January 1 From January 1 (in millions)
to June 30, to June 30, June 30, June 30, December 31,
Nature of 2020 2019 2020 2018 2019
Transaction (Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Audited)
Included under "Receivables"
Company under Common Controf
MBCI* Notes receivable P- {P4.0) P48.8 P24.8 P48.8
MBCi Interest Income 0.8 1.3 0.3 - 0.3
Immediate Parent
Philcomsat Notes receivable - - 14.0 - 14.0
Philcomsat interest Income 0.4 - 0.1 - 0.1
P63.2 P24.8 P63.2
*Montemar Beach Club Inc. (MBC{)
Presented under "Due from Related Parties®
Company under Common Control
MBCI Cash advances P- P- P9.6 P13.5 PS.6
MRDC* Cash advances - - 0.3 0.3 0.3
Immediate Parent
Philcomsat Cash advances - - 3.4 3.4 34
Subsidiary
PMEI Cash advances - - 0.6 0.6 0.6
P13.9 P17.8 P13.9
*Montemar Resort Development Corp. (MRDC)
Presented under "L ease Liability"
immediate Parent
Lease of office
Philcomsat space (P0.8) P— P1.0 P- P18
Philcomsat Interest expense {0.02) ~ - - -
P1.0 P- P1.8
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Amount of Transactions

{in millions) Qutstanding Balance
From January1  From January 1 (in millions)
to June 30, to June 30, June 30, June 30, December 31,
Nature of 2020 2019 2020 2018 2019
Transaction (Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Presented under "Due to a Related Party"
Immediate Parent
Agvances Tor
Philcomsat  project costs P- P~ P3.9 P3.9 P3.9

Presented under "Deposit for Future Stock Subscription

Immediate Parent
ruture

Philcomsat Subscription P~ P- P18.9 P18.9 P18.9
Included under "Costs and Expenses”

Immediate Parent
Rent ot oftice

Philcomsat space P— (P0.8) -8 =3 P—
Asspciation
Philcomsat dues {0.1) (0.1) - - -
Philcomsat Utilities {0.3) 0.1) _ B ~
Subsidiary
Hrotessional Tee
as stock
PSTI transfer agent (0.09) (0.09) — - =

P- P- P

The outstanding balance of cash advances to PMEl amounting to P0.6 million as at June 30, 2020
and 2019, and December 31, 2019 were eliminated in the consolidation.

The amount of transactions with PST| amounting to P90,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2020
and 2019 were eliminated in the consolidation.

Receivable from MBCI and Philcomsat

Cash advances to MBCI and Philcomsat are unsecured and due on demand and bear interest at 5%
to 6% per annum and will be settled in cash.

Receivable from Philcomsat and MRDC
Cash advances to Philcomsat at MRDC are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, due on demand and will
be setiled in cash.

The Company did not recognize any provision for ECL on due from related parties since the
counterparties have sufficient liquid assets to settle the unpaid amounts as at reporting period. This
assessment is undertaken each financial year through review of the financial position of the related
party and the market in which the related party operates. Related party transactions have been fairly
evaluated since the Company treated it same with the transactions to the third parties.

Due to a Related Party

Due to a related party are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, due on demand and will be settled in
cash.
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The Group as a Lessee

The Group has a lease agreement with Philcomsat for the rent of its office space located at the 12th
Floor, Telecom Plaza Building, 316 Sen. Gil Puyat Ave., Makati City. The lease terms are for two
years and is renewable under mutual agreement of both parties.

Stock Transfer Agency
The Parent Company entered into agreement with PSTI to avail their services as stock transfer
agent.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Compensation of the key management personnel of the Company consists only of directors’ fees
amounting to P1.9 million and P1.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively (see Note 14).

The Company does not have any regular employees. The accounting and management services are
under the management of Philcomsat.

18. Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic/diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed as follows:

From April 1 From April 1 From January 1 From January 1

to June 30, to June 30, to June 30, to June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited})
Net income P6,155,648 P7.,526,880 P6,616,606 P15,724,333
Weighted average numbsr of
shares outstanding 996,391,254 996,391,254 996,391,254 996,391,254
P0.0062 P0.0076 P0.0066 P0.0158

19. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments are comprised of cash and cash equivalents, receivables
(excluding advances subject ta liquidation), due from related parties, financial assets at FVPL and
FVOCI, trade and other payables (excluding statutory payables), customers' deposits and due to a
related party. The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are market, credit and
liquidity risks.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of an investment will decrease due to movements in market
factors such as, but not limited to, equity price risk or the risk that the stock prices will change;
interest rate risk or the risk that interest rates will change and currency risk or the risk that foreign
exchange rates will change.

The central focus of the Group's market risk management is financial assets at FVOCI. The Group
has established a risk management/measure system to mitigate the adverse effects in fluctuations of
the price or market value of these financial assets. The current policies of the Group are anchored on
the selective purchase of shares of stock and establishment of trading and stop loss limits on dealer
trading activities to manage possible financial losses to be incurred from trading activities.
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Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity instruments recognized under financial
assets at FVOCI decrease as the result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual stocks.

The Company measures the sensitivity of its investment securities by using PSE index (PSEi)
fluctuations. The table below sets forth the impact of changes in PSEi in other comprehensive
income as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019.

Increase (Decrease) in Increase (Decrease) in

PSEi Index Other Comprehensive Income

June 30, 2020 28% P55,117,440
(24%) (47,058,421)

June 30, 2019 3% 5,644,633
(7%) (14,576,120)

December 31, 2019 8% 16,649,174
(4%) (9,628,656)

The sensitivity of the equity is the effect of the assumed changes in the PSEi on the net unrealized
gain (loss) for the period, based on the adjusted beta rate of equity securities as at June 30, 2020
and 2019, and December 31, 2019.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows
or the fair values of financial instruments. As at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019,
the Group has repriceable financial assets, specifically investments in quoted bonds classified as
financial assets at FVOCI. Accordingly, the Group is subject to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group measures the sensitivity of its investment securities by using PHP BVAL reference rate
fluctuations. The table below sets forth the impact of changes in PHP BVAL in the Group's other
comprehensive incomeas at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019,

Increase (Decrease) in Increase (Decrease) in
PHP BVAL Other Comprehensive Income
June 30, 2020 104% P687,869,402
June 30, 2019 41% 265,181,674
(0.3%) (2,215,277)
December 31, 2019 73% 493,016,241
(1%) (5,476,114)

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's foreign-currency denominated financial instrument consists of cash in banks and cash
equivalents totaling US$1.1 million, US$1.7 million and US$1.1 million as at June 30, 2020 and 2019,
and December 31, 2019. The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk is insignificant.

The Group's objective is to reduce the exposure to foreign currency risk at a minimum since
revenues are peso-denominated.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. Financial assets that potentially subject the Group to credit risk consist
primarily of cash in banks and cash equivalents, receivables (excluding advances subject to
liquidation), due from related parties, debt instruments measured at FVOCI.

The Group enters into contracts only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. The Group obtains guarantees where appropriate to mitigate credit risk.

Financial Assets

The Group limits its credit risk by depositing its cash with highly reputable and pre-approved financial
institutions and by providing loans to counterparties with sufficient liquid assets to settle the loan
balance when demanded.

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Group considers credit risk in measuring ECL
of debt instruments at amortized cost. Since all of these financial assets of the Company are
considered to have low credit risk, impairment loss is limited to 12 months ECL.

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
at amortized cost and FVOCI represent the maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date
as follows:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019
{(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Cash and cash equivalents* P225,905,167 P266,417,932 P208,042,744
Receivables** 249,155,423 171,731,079 249,011,396
Due from related parties 13,255,799 13,255,800 13,255,799
Financial assets at FVPL*** 86,760 101,461 112,065
Financial assets at FVOCI 987,959,056 1,000,642,752 998,192,651
“exciuding cash on hand amounting to F15,000 as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019.
*exciuding ad bject to liquidation ting to P557,905, P1,741,346 and P522,692 as at June 30, 2020 and 2019,

and Dacember 31, 2019, respectively.

“**presented under other current assets.

Generally, receivables are written-off if collection cannot be made despite exhausting all extra-judicial
and legal means of collection. The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is the carrying
value of the financial assets. The Group does not hold collateral as security.

Liquidity Risk

The Group seeks to manage its liquid funds through cash planning on a monthly basis. The Group
uses historical figures and experiences, and forecasts from its collection and disbursements. As part
of its liquidity risk management, the Group regutarly evaluates its projected and actual cash flows.
Moreover, it continuously assesses conditions in the financial markets for possible business
opportunities.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of cash. The Group considers its available funds and its liquidity in managing its financial
requirements. For its short-term funding, the Group's policy is to ensure that there are sufficient
capital inflows to match repayments of trade and other payables.
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The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company's financial liability based on

contractual undiscounted payments:

June 30, 2020 (Unaudited)

On More than 12
Demand 1to3months 3 to 12 months months Total
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses P- P3,671,519 P- P- P3,671,519
Due to a related party 3,848,624 - - - 3,948,624
Customers' deposits 1,237,874 - - - 1,237,874
Lease liabilities - 296,533 502,048 243,197 1,041,778
P5,186,498 P3,968,052 P502,048 P243,197 P9,899,795
June 30, 2019 (Unaudited)
On Demand N More than 12
0 3 months 3 to 12 months months Total
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses P- P4,768,330 P- P— P4,768,330
Due to a related party 3,948,624 - - - 3,948,624
Customers' deposits 1,237,874 - - - 1,237,874
P5,186,498 P4,768,330 P~ P— P9,954,828
December 31, 2019 (Audited)
On Demand 1to3months 3 to 12 months More than 12 T
months otal
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses P~ P244,248 P- P- P244,248
Due to a related party 3,948,624 - - - 3,948,624
Customers' deposits 1,237,874 - - - 1,237,874
Lease liabilities - 296,533 1,302,732 - 1,599,265
P5,186,498 P540,781 P1,302,732 P~ P7,030,011

20. Fair Value Measurement

The table below presents the financial assets and liabilities of the Company whose carrying amounts

approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of the transactions:

Financial Assets

June 30, 2020 (Unaudited)

June 30, 2019 (Unaudited)

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents P225,920,167 P225,920,167 P266,417,932 P266,417,932
Receivables* 249,155,423 249,155,423 171,731,079 171,731,079
Due from related parties 13,255,799 13,255,799 13,255,800 13,255,800
Financial assets at FVPL** 86,760 86,760 101,461 101,461
Financial assets at FVOCI:
Quoted bonds 663,652,481 663,652,481 651,161,093 651,161,093
Quoted shares of stocks 193,891,108 193,891,108 217,583,729 217,583,729
UITFs 124,815,467 124,815,467 129,127,930 129,127,930
Club memberships 5,600,000 5,600,000 2,770,000 2,770,000

P1,476,377,205

P1,476,377,205

P1,452,149,024

P1,452,149,024

“exciuding advances subject to fiquidation tolaling P557,905 and P1,741,346 a5 at Juhe 30, 2020 and 2019, respeciively.

***presented under other current assets.
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December 31, 2019 (Audited)

Carrying Amount Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents P208,057,744 P208,057,744
Receivables* 249,011,396 249,011,396
Due from related parties 13,255,799 13,255,799
Financial assets at FVPL** 112,065 112,065
Financial assets at FYOCI:
Quoted bonds 673,893,960 673,893,960
Quoted shares of stocks 215,308,854 215,308,854
UITFs 103,889,837 103,889,837
Club memberships 5,100,000 5,100,000
P1,468,629,655 P1,468,629,655
*exciuding ach bject io fiquidation totaling P5§22,692 as at Decsmber 31, 2019 .

“pressnted under other curment assets.

Financial Liabilities

June 30, 2020 {(Unaudited) June 30, 2019 (Unaudited)
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Accounts payable and accrued expehses 3,671,513 P3,671,519 P4,768,330 P4,768,330
Due to a related party 3,948,624 3,948,624 3,948,624 3,948,624
Customers' deposits 1,237,874 1,237,874 1,237,874 1,237,874
Lease liabilities 1,041,778 1,041,778 - -
P9,899,795 P9,899,795 P9,954,828 P9,954,828

December 31, 2019 {Audited)

Carrying Amount Fair Value
Accounts payable and accrued expenses P244,248 P244,248
Due to a related party 3,948,624 3,948,624
Customers' deposits 1,237,874 1,237,874
Lease liabilities 1,599,265 1,698,265
P7,030,011 P7,030,011

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Due from Related Parties, Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
and Customers' Deposits. Due to the short-term nature of transactions, the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values as at reporting date.

Financial Assets at FVPL and FVOCI. The fair value of these financial assets, except for managed
funds, are determined in reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the
reporting date since most of these are actively traded in an organized financial market. The fair
values of managed funds are determined through reference to the quoted price of the underlying
securities in the fund. The fair value measurement of these financial assets is classified as Level 1
(Quoted bonds, shares of stock and club memberships) and Level 2 (UITFs).

Receivables (excluding Advances Subject to Liquidation). The fair values of receivables are
estimated as the present value of all future cash flows discounted using applicable rates of similar
type of instruments as at reporting date. The discount rates used ranged from 6.0% to 7.0% as at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, and December 31, 2019. The fair value measurement of these receivables
is classified as Level 2 {Significant observable inputs).
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Lease Liabilities . The carrying amount of lease liabilities approximate its fair value because the initial
recognition of lease liability is based on the discounted value of lease rentals and expected payments
at the end of the lease.

21. Capital Management

The ptimary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments when there are changes
in economic conditions.

The Company considers total equity as its capital. The Company monitors its capital structure using
debt-to-equity ratio which is gross debt divided by equity as follows:

June 30, June 30, December 31,
2020 2019 2019

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Total Debt P29,370,905 P29,620,183 P26,729,912
Total Equity 1,456,892,572 1,433,653,129 1,452,402,008
Debt-to-equity ratio 0.02:1 0.02:1 0.02:1

22. Changes in Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

The following table summarizes the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

December 31, June 30,

2019 2020

(Audited) Additions Payments (Unaudited)

Lease liabilities P1,842,462 P- P800,684 P1,041,778

23. Operating Segment Information

The Group is organized into operating segments based on the type of product or service. The
Group's reportable operating segments relates to investing of funds in various financial assets,
service agreements with the government and stock transfer agency.

The disaggregated revenue, as disclosed in Note 13, was assigned to the operating segments as
follows:

Revenue as Disaggregated Operating Segment
Interest income Investing of funds
Dividend income Investing of funds
Rent income Investing of funds

Service agreement with the govemment /
Service fees Management services
Retainer fee Stock transfer agency
Stock transfer fee Stock transfer agency
Other service fee Stock transfer agency
Gain on sale of a subsidiary Investing of funds
Gain on sale of AFS financial assets Investing of funds
Gain on sale of investment property Investing of funds
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All of the assets relating to the Group's operating segments are located in the Philippines.
Accordingly, reporting operating segments per geographical business operation is not required.

Segment assets, liabilities and revenue and expenses are measured in accordance with PFRS. The
presentation and classification of segment revenue and expenses are consistent with that presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Significant information of the Group's reportable segments is as follows:

June 30, 2020 {Unaudited)

investing of Management  Stock Transfer
Segment Funds Services Agency Total
Segment revenue P23,607,762 P- P2,965,461 P26,573,223
Segment profit 23,446,678 - 1,222,619 24,669,297
interest income 20,204,343 - - 20,204,349
Depreciation 607,346 - 178,332 785,678
Provision for income tax 28,946 129,969 63,325 222,240
Total assets 1,452,020,134 30,561,716 3,681,627 1,486,263,477
Total liabilities 24,094,016 4,601,865 675,024 29,370,905
June 30, 2019 (Unaudited)
Investing of Management Stock Transfer
Segment Funds Services Agency Total
Segment revenue P27,310,049 P— P2,882,327 R30,192,376
Segment profit (loss) 28,455,001 58,807 (48,751) 28,465,057
Interest income 11,893,606 - - 11,893,606
Depreciation - - 1,455 1,455
Benefit from income tax {1,144,852) (58,807) (25,954) (1,229,714}
Total assets 1,430,012,491 28,479,999 3,461,393 1,461,953,883
Total liabilities 24,772,882 4,588,122 259,179 20,620,183
December 31, 2019 (Audited)
Service
Investing of Agreements with Stock Transfer
Segment Funds  the Government Agency Total
Segment revenue P52,370,257 P~ P5,921,669 P58,291,926
Segment profit 52,999,774 - 2,316,933 55,316,707
Interest income 9,209,346 - - 9,209,346
Depreciation 1,239,882 - 120,353 1,360,235
Provision for (benefit from) income tax (598,520) (34,250) 149,660 (483,110)
Total assets 1,445,354,720 30,156,591 3,620,609 1,479,131,920
Total liabilities 21,364,100 4,601,866 763,946 26,729,912
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Reconciliation of the total balances for the reportable segments with the balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of income is as follows:

June 30, 2020 (Unaudited)

Not Attributable
Reportable to Reportable Consolidated
Segments Segments Balances
Revenue P26,573,223 P- P26,573,223
Cost and expenses (2,729,635) {16,143,046) (18,872,681)
Other charges (861,6986) - (861,696)
Income (loss) before income tax 22,981,892 (16,143,046) 6,838,846
Benefit from income tax 222,240 - 222,240
Net incoms (loss) P22,759,652 {P16,143,046) P6,616,606
Assets P1,484,944,048 P1,319,429 P1,486,263,477
Liabilities P29,370,905 P- P29,370,905
June 30, 2019 (Unaudited)
Not Attributable
Repartable to Reportable Consolidated
Segments Segments Balances
Revenue P30,192,376 P- P30,192,376
Cost and expenses (2,957,032) {11,413,798) (14,370,830)
Other charges - (1,326,926) (1,326,926)
Income (loss) before income tax 27,235,344 (12,740,724) 14,494,620
Benefit from income tax (1,229,713) - {1,229,713)
Net income (loss) P28,465,057 (P12,740,724) P15,724,333
Assets P1,461,953,883 P1,319,429 P1,463,273,312
Liabilities P29,620,183 P-— P29,620,183
December 31, 2019 (Audited)
Not Attributable
Repoartable to Reportable Consolidated
Segments Segments Balances
Revenue P58,291,926 P- P58,291,926
Cost and expenses (5,946,035) (27,505,615) {33,451,650)
Other income (4,705,385) - (4,705,385)
Income (loss) before income tax 47,640,506 (27,505,615) 20,134,891
Benefit from income tax (483,110) - (483,110)
Net income (loss) P48,123,616 (P27,505,615) P20,618,001
Assets P1,477,812,491 P1,319,429 P1,479,131,920
Liabilities P26,729,912 P- P26,729,912

Differences between the reportable segment's assets, liabilities, revenue and net income and the
Group's consolidated assets, liabilities, revenue and net income pertain primarily to goodwill and the
Parent Company's operating expenses in 2020 and 2019, which cannot be directly attributed to any

reportable segment.
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24. Aging of Accounts Receivable

The aging schedule of the Group's receivables are as follows:

June 30, 2020

(Unaudited)
Neither Past Past Due but not impaired
Due nor More than
Impaired 30 days 60 days Total
Notes and loans P244,871,590 P~ P- P244,871,590
Due from related parties 13,255,799 - - 13,255,799
Interest receivable 2,990,981 - - 2,990,981
Retainer fee receivable 993,360 - - 993,360
Advances subject to liquidation 557,905 - - 557,905
Dividend receivable 213,425 - - 213,425
Nontrade receivable 98,334 - - 98,334
P262,981,394 P~ P- P262,981,394
June 30, 2019
{Unaudited)
Neither Past Past Due but not impaired
Due naor More than
Impaired 30 days 60 days Total
Notes and ioans P164,213,590 P— P- P164,213,580
Due from related parties 13,255,800 - - 13,255,800
Interest receivable 5,744,088 - - 5,744,088
Advances subject to liquidation 1,741,346 - - 1,741,346
Retainer fee receivable 1,501,866 - - 1,501,866
Dividend receivable 214,825 - - 214,825
Nontrade receivable 56,710 - - 56,710
P186,728,225 P- P- 'P186,728,225
December 31, 2019
(Audited)
Neither Past Past Due but not impaired
Due nor More than
Impaired 30 days 60 days Total
Notes and ipans P243,871,590 P- P- P243,871,590
Due from related parties 13,255,799 - - 13,255,799
Interest receivable 3,923,356 - - 3,923,356
Advances subject to liquidation 522,692 - - 522,692
Retainer fee receivable 966,281 - - 966,281
Dividend receivable 157,535 - - 157,535
Nontrade receivable 92,634 - - 92,634
P262,789,887 P— P- P262,789,887
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25. Civil Cases

An action was filed in the Sandiganbayan by a group claiming to be directors and officers of POTC
and Philcomsat seeking to enjoin the present directors and officers of POTC and Philcomsat from
representing themselves as directors and officers and representatives of the Parent Company, The
Parent Company sought the dismissal of the complaint against it on the ground that it is not a real
party-in-interest since the injunction being sought is not directed against it. The Sandiganbayan
issued a decision dismissing the case. The group alleging that they are the POTC and Philcomsat
board of directors, however, appealed the case with the Supreme Court (8C) on November 10, 2008.
The SC consolidated this case with three other cases.

On July 3, 2013, the SC in GR Nos. 184622, 184712-14, 186066 and 186590 ruled in favor of the
Bildner Group and declared the Bildner Group as the legitimate board of directors of the Parent
Company. The July 3, 2013 Decision attained finality on October 23, 2013 when the SC issued a
Resolution denying the Motions for Reconsideration filed by the opposing parties. On March 27,
2014, the July 23, 2013 Decision has become final and executory.

The Parent Company also filed cases for the recovery of advances made by former directors and
officers of the Parent Company. These cases are now pending resolution with the Department of
Justice (DOJ).

26. Litigation

The following cases were filed by the Parent Company to recover assets allegedly withdrawn or
misappropriated by the former officers:

* Philippine Communications Satellite Corporation Against Philcomsat Holdings Corp. (PHC and
former directors), Luis Lokin Jr., Enrique Locsin and Philip Brodett (Locsin Group)

PHC, through the valid and incumbent directors (Bildner Group) filed a Motion for Issuance of
Writ of Execution with the Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Makati Branch 138 as court of origin,
following the final resolution of SC declaring the election of Locsin Group as PHC's officers and
directors. Accordingly, the SC ordered the Locsin Group to render an accounting and return of
funds allegedly received from the Parent Company. An Order granting the Motion was issued on
February 20, 2017, resulting to the issuance of the Writ of Execution on February 28, 2017. On
January 9, 2018, PHC filed a manifestation for the implementation of the Writ of Execution. On
February 8, 2018, an Order was issued directing PHC, within thirty (30) days from receipt, to
submit its preferred accounting firm who will conduct the accounting of all funds and other assets
received from POTC, PHC and Philcomsat since September 2004. On February 22, 2018, PHC
filed its Ex-Parte Manifestation and Motion, in compliance with the said Order. On July 11, 2018,
the Sheriff of the Office of the Clerk of Court of Makati served the Writ of Execution to Manuel
Andal, Benito Araneta, Philip Brodett, Enrique Locsin, Concepcion Poblador and Johnny Tan. On
June 6, 2019, PHC filed an Ex-Parte Motion to Resolve the pending motion to appoint Virgilio R.
Santos as the auditing accounting firm for the execution of the SC Decision dated July 3, 2013
issued in GR Nos. 184622, 184712-14, 186066 and 186590. There was a status conference held
in this case on December 13, 2019 where the Court required the defendants to provide a name of
their selected accountant to move forward with the audit. The defendants failed or refused again
to comply, so the Court is likely to appoint Philcomsat's proposed accountant, Virgilio R. Santos,
to do the audit.
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On May 2, 2017, the Presidential Commission on Good Government (PCGG) and Locsin filed
with the Court of Appeals (CA) a Petition for Certiorari and Prohibition with Very Urgent Prayer for
Issuance of Temporary Restraining Order and/or Writ of Preliminary Injunction assailing the Order
dated February 20, 2017 issued by the RTC. On January 30, 2018, the CA issued a Decision
dismissing the Petition. On February 22, 2018, PCGG and Locsin filed their Motion for
Reconsideration with Motion to Exclude the PCGG from the instant Petition, which are both
denied in a Resolution dated June 27, 2018. On August 8, 2018, PCGG filed its Motion for
Reconsideration on the denial of its Motion for Exclusion. On October 29, 2018, Philcomsat filed
its Opposition thereto.

Meanwhile, PCGG and Locsin filed a Petition for Review with the Supreme Court (SC)
questioning the Decision issued by the CA dated January 30, 2018, which dismissed their Appeal.
Philcomsat filed its comment thereto on November 6, 2018. PCGG filed its Reply on February 17,
2020.

Separately, Brodett filed his Petition for Certiorari under Rule 65 with the CA assailing the Order
issued by the RTC, which denied his Motion for Clarification on the issue of rendering an
accounting of the funds. The CA denied his Petition on the ground that clarification may only be
allowed if the order involves a clerical error but not when it is an alleged erroneous judgment or
dispositive portion of the decision. Since Brodett's Motion for Clarification was raised questioning
the grant of a writ of execution, the CA held that it cannot be subject of a motion for clarification.
On December 15, 2017, the CA's dismissal was issued and the case was considered terminated.
Brodett still filed his Motion for Reconsideration, which was denied on May 10, 2018. Brodett
elevated the matter to the SC via Petition for Review but the SC denied the same in a Resolution
dated August 29, 2018.

Complaint for Collection Against Araneta and Lokin

On May 26, 2010, a complaint for collection of sum of money and damages, with an application
for a Writ of Preliminary Attachment dated May 24, 2010 was filed by the Parent Company
against Benito Araneta and Luis Lokin Jr., former directors of the Parent Company for an alleged
personal back to back loans with Bankwise procured by Araneta using the Parent Company's
funds as collateral, with the help of Lokin, in the amount of P35.3 million.

On February 2, 2017, a Decision was issued finding Araneta and Lokin liable to pay PHC a)
actual damages in the sum of P31.5 million plus legal interest of 6% computed from May 286,
2010, the time of judicial demand until fully paid; b) P200,000 as and by way of exemplary
damages; and c) P200,000 as and by way of attorney's fees, plus costs of suit.

Araneta and Lokin filed their Notices of Appeal on September 6 and September 8, 2017,
respectively. On January 16, 2018, the Court of Appeals (CA) required defendants to file
Apellant's Brief within 45 days from receipt thereof. On April 20, 2018 and May 7, 2018, PHC
received Lokin and Araneta's Appellant's Briefs, respectively. On June 5, 2018, PHC filed its
Appellee’s Brief. On September 18, 2018, PHC filed a Compliance submitting proof of service of
its Appellee's Brief to defendants in accordance with the CA's Resolution dated July 2, 2018. On
April 25, 2018, the CA issued a Decision granting Araneta’s appeal. On May 30, 2019, PHC filed
its Motion for Reconsideration of the said Decision. On July 11, 2019, Araneta filed its Comment
thereto, in accordance with the Resolution dated June 6, 2019 issued by the CA to file the same.
On October 24, 2019, the Court of Appeal issued a Resolution denying PHC’s Motion for
Reconsideration.

On November 26, 2019, PHC elevated the case to the Supreme Court via Petition for Review on
Certiorari under Rule 45.
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* Criminal Complaint Against Brodett and Bankwise Officers Using Spurious Bank Accounts for
Parent Company's Deposits

On May 8, 2008, the Parent Company filed a criminal complaint for estafa for misappropriation of
corporate funds against Brodett, a former director of the Parent Company, and certain officers of
Bankwise. The complaint alleged that the unauthorized deposits, withdrawals and transfers of the
Parent Company's funds in the amount of P66.8 million was processed through spurious bank
accounts and involved the co-mingling and transfer of funds between the Parent Company's
accounts and certain personal accounts.

On June 14, 2016, an Order was issued allowing Brodett to present his defense only with respect
to the P27.0 million and P9.3 million which allegedly came from PHC funds and not in the whole
amount of P66.8 million. On July 1, 2016, a Motion for Reconsideration of the said Order was filed
by the Private Prosecutor (Parent Company). On August 30, 20186, the Private Prosecutor (Parent
Company) filed a Reply to Brodett's Comment/Opposition dated August 25, 2016. After the
presentation of defense evidence has already been concluded on June 5, 2018, the accused filed
their Formal Offer of Evidence, which was partially admitted by the Court on August 28, 2018. On
February 21, 2020, the Court promulgated its judgment finding accused Brodett guilty for the
crime of theft, sentencing him to the penalty of imprisonment for a minimum period of four (4)
years, two (2) months, one (1) day, to a maximum period of sixteen (16) years and 4 months. He
was also found civilly liable to pay PHC the amount of P14,235,700, with legal interest of 12% per
annum from April 11, 2008 until June 30, 2013 and the total obligation plus 6% legal interest from
July 1, 2013 until fully paid. Brodett manifested that he will file his Motion for Reconsideration of
the said Decision.

* Criminal Complaint Against Araneta for Non-Return of PHC Deposits

A criminal complaint for estafa was filed against Araneta for money market placements
amounting to P65.0 million which allegedly were not returned to the Parent Company. The case
was dismissed on February 9, 2009 for lack of probable cause. The appeal filed on March 4, 2009
is still pending decision with the DOJ as at report date.

* Criminal Complaint Against Locsin and Andal for Alleged Excessive Amounts of Salaries and
Bonuses

On September 11, 2006, the Parent Company filed a complaint against Locsin and Andal with the
office of the Ombudsman seeking for the latter to file criminal and administrative charges against
the accused for alleged excessive amounts of salaries and bonuses from the Parent Company for
their personal gain, and in clear violation of Memarandum Circulars which limit the salary received
by public officials. The Ombudsman filed Informations for Violation of the Anti-Graft and Corrupt
Practices Act on December 7, 2011 against both Andal and Locsin with the Sandiganbayan for
receiving a total of P15.0 million and P11.0 million, respectively, from 2003 to 2005, from the
Parent Company.

Due to the need for the prosecution's witness to identify, and testify on, voluminous accounting
records showing the guilt of the accused, the Court ordered the parties to enter into a stipulation
of facts to expedite the proceedings. Andal, through counsel, stipulated on the facts propounded
by the Prosecution. During the hearing on September 28, 2017, Locsin, through counsel, asked
for time to study the prosecution's documents. On July 17, 2018, the prosecution's witness
completed her testimony.
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The prosecution has already filed its Formal Offer of Evidence and rested its case. On November
29, 2018, accused Andal with leave of court filed a Demurrer to Evidence while accused Locsin
filed his own on December 3, 2018. On July 5, 2019, the Sandiganbayan issued a Resolution
which a) granted the accused Demurrers to Evidence; b) dismissed the cases against them; ¢)
lifted and set aside the Hold Departure Orders against them; and d) ordered released the bail
bonds they posted, if any. On July 30, 2019, the Private Prosecution filed its Motion for
Reconsideration of the said Resolution on the civil aspect of the case, which was denied in a
Resolution dated October 25, 2019. The Parent Company decided not to pursue the case with
the Supreme Court.

¢ Criminal Complaint Against Concepcion A. Poblador

A criminal complaint for estafa was filed against Ms. Poblador for allegedly receiving cash
advances amounting to P14.5 million, which she failed to account for and return to the Parent
Company after formal demands. On February 9, 2009, the DOJ issued a Resolution directing the
filing of an Information against Ms. Poblador only for P0.2 million.

On January 7, 2014, the Parent Company filed a Petition for Certiorari praying that the DOJ file
new information against Ms. Poblador for estafa for the total amount of P16.7 million. On January
10, 2014, the Parent Company received a Petition for Certiorari filed by Ms. Poblador seeking the
reversal of the Resolution directing the filing of an Information for estafa against her for P0.2
million. On August 29, 2014, the two Petitions were consolidated.

On April 26, 2017, subsequent to the filing of the parties' respective Memoranda, the CA issued a
Resolution requiring Ms. Poblador to file a Rejoinder to the Parent Company's Reply (to the
Memorandum of Poblador). In the meantime, the case was returned to "Completion State”
pending the filing of the Rejoinder. Poblador filed her Rejoinder on June 1, 2017 under a Motion to
Admit Attached Rejoinder.

On November 29, 2017, Poblador filed a Manifestation adopting her previous Memorandum dated
December 22, 2014 as her compliance with the Resolution dated October 11, 2017. The Office of
the Solicitor General filed a Manifestation and Mction on November 24, 2017 asking that the DOJ
Secretary be excused from filing a Memorandum.

Based on the Resolution of the Court requiring the parties anew to file their respective
Memorandum, PHC's (2nd) Memorandum was filed on December 13, 2017, within the extended
period prayed for.

On June 14, 2019, the CA issued a Decision denying both PHC's and Ms. Poblador's Petitions for
Certiorari. On July 5 and 11, 2019, both parties filed their respective Motions for Reconsideration.
On July 24, 2019, PHC filed its Comment to Ms. Poblador’'s Motion for Reconsideration. To date,
no Comment to PHC's Motion for Reconsideration has yet been filed or received from Pablador.

* |nspection of Books Cases

Several cases for inspection of books were filed against the Corporation by Atty. Victor V. Africa.
In 2018, Atty. Africa, with the concurrence of the Corporation, withdrew ali the cases and the
Corporation acknowledges the goodwill of Atty. Africa in doing so. Atty. Africa has since sold all
his 5,500 common shares in the Corporation.

The Group is also involved in other litigations, claims and disputes which are normal to its business.

Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, with respect to these litigations, claims and
disputes will not materially affect the financial position and financial performance of the Group.
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ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations.

Key Performance Indicators (KP!)

The Company’s KP! for the quarters ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows -

Performance Formula June 30, June 30,
Indicator 2020 2019
Liquidity
Current Current Assets

Ratio Current Liabilities 47.4441 37.53:1
Leverage
Debt to Total Liabilities

Equity Ratio Total Equity 0.02:1 0.02:1
Assetto Total Assets

Equity Ratio Total Equity 1.02:1 1.02:1

Profitability
Net Profit Net Profit 0.46:1 0.48:1
Ratio Revenue
Return on Net Income A41% 51%
Assets Total Assets
Return on Net Income A42% 53%
Equity Total Equity
Liquidity

The Company's current assets of P485,448,184 as of June 30, 2020 and current
liabilities of P10,233,708 resulted in liquidity ratio of 47.44:1 compared to the same quarter of
previous year wherein the ratio was lower at 37.53:1. The increase was due to increase in
acquisition of short-term notes.

Leverage

There were no changes between the Debt to Equity ratio and Asset to Equity Ratio for the
period of June 30, 2020 and 2019. The ratio shows that the Group's assets are more than
adequate to cover its liabilities.

Profitability

The Group results of operations for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 reflected a net profit
ratio of 0.46:1, lower than 0.48:1 of the previous year due to a marked decrease in interest

rates. Return on Assets decreased by 0.10% in 2020 from 0.51% in 2019; similarly, Retumn on
Equity in 2020 decreased by 0.11% from 0.53% in 2019.

60



Results of Operations

From 2000 to 2010, the Corporation was invoived in an intra-corporate feud between the
Brodett-Araneta-Lokin-Locsin-Poblador Group, who controlled the Corporation from 2000 to
December 2007, present Management assumed control in December 2007.

Due to the hostile take-over, the Brodett Group withdrew the corporate funds, transferred
corporate property and held the corporate funds, Thus, for the period between December 2007 and
May 2010, present Management has not been able to focus on growing the business and operations
of the Corporation as all efforts were geared towards recovering corporate assets.

Presently, the Company’s investments remain in money market placements and other liquid
financial instruments.

The following table shows the results of Philcomsat Holdings Corporation's operations for the
quarters ended June 30, 2020 and 2019;

For the quarter ended

June 30, June, Increase/  YoY Change
Results of Operations 2020 2019 (Decrease) (%)
Revenues P13,393,623 P15,661,711 (P2,268,088) (14.48%)
Expenses (5,851,036) (7,020,257) (1,169,221) (16.65%)
Income(loss) from
operations P7,542,587 P8,641,454 (P1,098,867) (12.72%)

The Group recorded lower income from operations for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 than
the same period in 2019 due to lower interest rates.
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Discussion and Analysis of Material Events and Uncertainties

Any known trends or any known demands, commitments, events
or uncertainties that will result in or that are reasonably likely to
result in the registrant’s liquidity increasing or decreasing in any

material way.

Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation
that is material to the company, including any default or

acceleration of an obligation.

All  material off-balance shest transactions,

obligations (including contingent

obligations),

arrangements,

and

other

relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other

persons created during the reporting

period.

Any material commitments for capital expenditures, the general
purpose of such commitments, and the expected sources of funds
for such expenditures should be described.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that
are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or
unfavorable impact on net sales or revenues or income from
continuing operations should be described.

vi. Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from

the registrant's continuing operations
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The Parent
Company filed
various cases
against its former
directors {o recover
assets they
allegedly withdrawn
or misappropriated
which, if won, will
result in the liquidity
position of the
Group to increase in
a material way.

The Company has a
contingent liability
should the Parent
Company fail to
perform its contract
with Speedcast, Ltd.

The Company
guaranteed the
obligations of its
Parent Company to
perform its contract
with Speedcast. Ltd.
with a price of
P203Million.

None

A prolonged
lockdown due to the
inability to contain
COVID19 pandemic
and the absence of
a vaccine may
hamper economic
recovery and lead to
lower yields on fixed
income instruments
while equity market
returns will most
likely be
handicapped by
weak 2™ half
prospects and risk
of economic
disrupfions.

Tax assessment on
prior years.



vii. The causes for any material change from period to period which The volatility of

shall include vertical and harizontal analyses of any material itemn.

viii. Any seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial

condition or results of operations.
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market prices of the
Group’s financial
assets measured at
fair value through
other
comprehensive
income.

None



List of Top 20 Stockholders as of June 30, 2020

COEND DBy

o
3
-~

Name
Philippine Communications Satellite Corp.
Somera, Jr., Prudencio C.
Laperal, Oliverio G.
PCD Nominee Carporation (Filipino)
RCBC T/A 236-235 A/C Oliverio Laperal
Villarama, Jhoanna .
Marino Olondriz Y -Cia (Hold, per PSE)
Ozamiz, Jose Ma.
RCBC T/A 36-250 A/C Oliverio Laperal
Phil. Oil Development Corp.
Imperial Resources, Inc.
Laperal, Jr., Oliverio
Benjamin Co Ca & Co,, Inc.
Concepcion, Regina L.
Laperal, Rosa Maria L.
Laperal, Alexandra L.
Cheng, Agrifino T.
Ansaldo, Godinez & Co., Inc.
Dacillo, Nenita
Bridgestone Securities Corporation

64

Number of Common Shares
796,595,690
100,000,100

49,556,500
16,274,534
4,802,413
4,000,000
2,985,600
2,700,000
2,689,000
1,500,000

800,000
776,743
504,300
481,000
448,000
440,000
410,000
332,650
320,000
307,425



As of June 30, 2020, the members of Board of Directors/Key Officers of Philcomsat Holdings

Corporation are as follows:

Santiago J. Ranada, Jr.
Daniel C. Gutierrez
Katrina C. Ponce Enrile
Erlinda 1. Biidner
Marietta K. llusorio
Pablo L. Lobregat
Prudencio C. Somera
Santiago J. Ranada
Jose Ramon C. Ozamiz
Julie Y. Daza

Ofiverio L. Laperal, Jr.

Victoria C. De los Reyes
John Benedict L. Sioson

Manolita .. Morales

Atfty. Lorna P. Kapunan
Bernadette Y. Blanco
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Director and Chair/EVP
Director

Director'and President/CEQ
Director and CFO/Treasurer
Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Corporate Secretary

- Assistant Corporate Secretary/Corporate

Information Officer
Assistant Treasurer

Chief Legal Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer
Investor Relations Officer/Assistant Compliance
Officer



